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Diaz-Greco, Gilma M.  (COE)

From: Centorino, Joseph (COE)

Sent: Monday, March 03, 2014 4:41 PM

To: Garcia, Vicky (Aviation)

Cc: Diaz-Greco, Gilma M.  (COE); Sanchez, Gerald (CAO); Murray, David M. (Aviation)

Subject: INQ - Dan Agostino, Assistant Director of Operations, Miami-Dade Aviation Department

Ms. Garcia, 

 

Please forward this to response to Mr. Pyatt’s attention., in response to the letter forwarded by you from Mr. Pyatt.  

 

This inquiry was received through Ken Pyatt, Deputy Director, Miami-Dade Aviation Department (MDAD). It concerns 

whether appropriate safeguards are in place at MDAD to insure that Dan Agostino, newly-hired Assistant Director of 

Operations at MDAD, will not be in violation of the reverse two-year rule embodied in Section 2-11.1(x) of the Miami-

Dade County Conflict of Interest and Code of Ethics Ordinance.  Mr. Agostino was previously the local Director of Tower 

and Ramp Operations for American Airlines.  In his new position he would have extensive responsibilities regarding the 

overall operations at  MIA.   Section 2-11.1(x) provides that a person who was previously employed in a business entity 

“shall, for a period of two years following termination of his or her prior relationship with the business entity, perform 

any County contract-related duties regarding the business entity, or successor in interest, where the business entity is a 

County bidder, proposer, service provider, contractor or vendor.”  American Airlines, which has the largest operation of 

any airline in MIA, qualifies as a county contractor or vendor due to its lease agreement at the airport.  

 

Following his being apprised of the application of Section 2-11.1(x) to Mr. Agostino, Mr. Pyatt forwarded a letter dated 

February 25, 2014 to this writer’s attention, which shall be included in the file of this INQ.  The letter outlined certain 

conditions of employment regarding Mr. Agostino’s position at the airport that would apply during the relevant two-

year period.  The intent of these conditions is to restrict Mr. Agostino from being in a position where he would be 

interacting with American Airlines or its employees in such a way as to violate Section 2-11.1(x).  In particular, the letter 

stated that, “Dan will not be authorized to take any action with respect to American Airlines, including, but not limited 

to, gate or hardstand assignments, baggage system modifications, ticket counter staffing, cargo or baggage handling, or 

otherwise.  All such actions will originate from and be handled by me [Pyatt] or my designee. All issues related to 

American’s compliance with the Airline Use Agreement, Chapter 25 of the County Code, any Operational Directive, or 

any lease will also be handled by me or my designee.  Dan will use good faith effort to limit his interactions with 

American, barring interactions needed to avert an imminent risk to life or safety.”  The letter goes further in setting Mr. 

Agostino’s limitations concerning his job responsibilities, attendance at meetings, and other aspects of the MIA’s 

operations.  It indicates that American Airlines has agreed to abide by  the limitations in the letter. 

 

Under the terms set forth in Mr. Pyatt’s letter of February 25, I find that Mr. Agostino may serve in his current position 

as long as he complies with those conditions. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

Joseph M. Centorino 

Executive Director and General Counsel 

Miami-Dade Commission on Ethics and Public Trust 

 

From: Garcia, Vicky (Aviation) [mailto:MVGarcia@miami-airport.com]  

Sent: Wednesday, February 26, 2014 11:17 AM 

To: Centorino, Joseph (COE) 
Subject: Dan Agostino  
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Good morning Mr. Centorino, 

 

This email is sent on behalf of Ken A. Pyatt, Deputy Director at Miami-Dade Aviation Department.  The original 

document is being sent to your office via messenger.  Should you have any questions regarding this matter, please feel 

free to contact Mr. Pyatt.  He can be reached at 305.876.7129 or email KPyatt@miami-airport.com.          

 

Thank you. 

 

Vicky Garcia 

Executive Secretary 

Miami-Dade Aviation Department 

P.O. Box 025504 

Miami, FL  33102-5504 

Office: (305) 876-0266 

Fax: (305) 876-0948 

 

"Delivering Excellence Every Day" 

 

www.miami-airport.com 

Connect with us:    
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Diaz-Greco, Gilma M.  (COE)

From: Murawski, Michael P. (COE)

Sent: Wednesday, January 15, 2014 1:37 PM

To: Centorino, Joseph (COE); Ramos, Miriam S. (COE); Diaz-Greco, Gilma M.  (COE); Batista, 

Sylvia (COE)

Subject: FW: Request for Opinion from the Ethics commission

Importance: High

Joe: here’s the request for opinion we discussed 

 

From: Pyatt, Ken (Aviation) [mailto:Kpyatt@miami-airport.com]  

Sent: Wednesday, January 15, 2014 1:12 PM 
To: Batista, Sylvia (COE); Murawski, Michael P. (COE) 

Subject: Request for Opinion from the Ethics commission 

 

Ms. Sylvia Battista 

Mr. Michael P. Murawski: 

 

 

Recently, you met with me to discuss application of the Code of Ethics, particularly Section 2-11.1(x),  to the 

Aviation Department’s hiring of Daniel Agostino. As we see it, the relevant portions of subsection (x) are the 

following: 

No [county employee], who was previously employed by…a for-profit firm,…shall, for a period of two 

years following termination of his…prior relationship with the [firm], perform any county contract-

related duties regarding the [firm, where  the [firm] is a county bidder, proposer, service provider, 

contractor or vendor.  As used in this subsection (x), “contract-related duties” include, but are not 

limited to: service as a member of a county…committee; approval or recommendation of award of 

contract; contract enforcement, oversight or administration; amendment, extension or termination of 

contract; or forbearance regarding any contract. 

Mr. Agostino had been employed by American Airlines (AA)  prior to his joining the Aviation 

Department.  AA is not a bidder, proposer, service provider, contractor or vendor to the County or the Aviation 

Department; rather, the County and MDAD are required under federal law to allow AA to access all public 

portions of the airport, and is not required to be a bidder, proposer, service provider, contractor, or vendor in 

exercising its federal rights to access the airport. All services provided by AA are to the traveling public, and 

not to the County or MDAD.  Accordingly, we believe that subsection (x) does not apply to Mr. Agostino.  

We do recognize, however, that airlines—including AA—use the airport under various leases and contracts that 

are largely the same for all airlines.  AA uses airport facilities under various leases and accesses the airport in 

general through the Board-approved Airline Use Agreement (the AUA).  The bulk of the matters that will be 

attended to by Mr. Agostino with AA will involve airport and inter-airline operational issues that are not 

covered or addressed by these contract documents.  To avoid any appearance of a conflict of interest, and to the 

extent subsection (x) is applicable to Mr. Agostino, we are willing to avoid assigning to him during the two year 

period to any enforcement or oversight of a matter with AA that is directly covered by an AA lease or the 

AUA.  This is in consideration of the fact that all of our contract documents with the airlines require the airlines 

to comply generally with County ordinances, policies, and procedures, and any matter that comes up with an 

airline may technically fall under this generalized contract requirement.  This generalized contract provision 



2

though, is not what we’re referring to; rather, what we’re saying is, that, if subsection (x) is applicable to him, 

Mr. Agostino will not be assigned to a matter that is directly covered by the remainder of the contract 

provisions.   

We therefore respectfully request an opinion that Section 2-11(x) is not applicable to Mr. Agostino.  If you 

determine that it is or may be applicable, we request an opinion that subsection (x) is satisfied by Mr. 

Agostino’s not being assigned during the two-year period to a matter with AA that is directly covered by an AA 

contract document. 

             

I thank you for your attention to this matter. 

 
 

 

Ken Pyatt 

Deputy Director 

Miami-Dade Aviation Department 

Tel: (305) 876-7129 

Fax: (305) 876-0948 

Email: kpyatt@miami-airport.com 

 

"Delivering Excellence Every Day" 

 

www.miami-airport.com 

Connect with us:    

 

 
 




































